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For the purposes of this Annual Report, the following terms contained herein shall have the
meaning provided below:

Czech National Bank

European Investment Bank, registered office: 98-100 boulevard Konrad
Adenauer, L-2950 Luxembourg

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., variable-capital investment fund, Company ID
No. (ICO): 02059533, registered office: Pod kfizkem 1773/2,
147 00 Prague 4, registered in the Commercial Register maintained by the
Municipal Court in Prague, Section B, Entry No. 19323

Inven Capital — Subfund B

e AMISTA investiéni spole¢nost, a.s.,Company ID No. (ICO): 274 37 558,
¥ registered office: Pobrezni 620/3, Prague 8, 186 00

~ 5 Period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020

aluation Date Last day of the Accounting Period

Act No. 240/2013 Coll., on Investment Companies and Investment Funds,
as amended




Declaration of honor of the persons
responsible for the Annual Report

To the best of our knowledge, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case,
the Annual Report gives a true and fair view of the financial position, business and results
of operations for the year 2020, prospects for future development, business activities and results
of operations, and does not conceal any facts that could change the purpose and meaning of this
Report

In Prague, 13 April 2021

ot \N

Inven Cagital, SICAV, a.s. Inven Capital, S|CAV, a.s.
Ing. Ivo/Némejc Ing. Viktor MiSkoysky
Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors Member of the|\Board of Directors
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(Translation of a report originally issued in Czech - see Note 2 to the financial statements.)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Shareholder of sub-fund Inven Capital - Podfond B, of Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of sub-fund Inven Capital - Podfond B, of Inven
Capital, SICAV, a.s. (the Sub-fund) prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the Czech Republic, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2020, and the income
statement, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information. For details of the Sub-fund, see Note 1 to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors and Auditing Standards of the Chamber
of Auditors of the Czech Republic, which are International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), as amended
by the related application clauses. Our responsibilities under this law and reqgulation are further described
in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Sub-fund in accordance with the Act on Auditors and the Code of Ethics adopted
by the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

In compliance with Section 2(b) of the Act on Auditors, the other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon. The Board
of Directors of Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s. is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information. In connection with our audit
of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. In addition, we assess whether
the other information has been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with applicable law
or requlation, in particular, whether the other information complies with law or regulation in terms
of formal requirements and procedure for preparing the other information in the context of materiality,
i.e. whether any non-compliance with these requirements could influence judgments made on the basis
of the other information.

Based on the procedures performed, to the extent we are able to assess it, we report that:
e The other information describing the facts that are also presented in the financial statements is,
in all material respects, consistent with the financial statements; and
e The other information is prepared in compliance with applicable law or regulation.

In addition, our responsibility is to report, based on the knowledge and understanding of the Sub-fund
obtained in the audit, on whether the other information contains any material misstatement. Based on the
procedures we have performed on the other information obtained, we have not identified any material
misstatement.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o. with its registered office at Na Florenci 2116/15, 110 00 Prague 1 - Nove Mesto,
has been incorporated in the Commercial Register administered by the Municipal Court in Prague,

Section C, entry no. 88504, under Identification No. 26704153.
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Responsibilities of the Board of Directors of Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s. for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s. is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Czech
Republic and for such internal control as the Board of Directors of Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s. determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors of Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s. is responsible for
assessing the Sub-fund'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of Inven
Capital, SICAV, a.s. either intends to liquidate the Sub-fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with above regulations will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the above law or regulation, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sub-fund'’s internal control and the internal control of Inven
Capital, SICAV, a.s.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors of Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s. Board of Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Sub-fund's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Sub-fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o. with its registered office at Na Florenci 2116/15, 110 00 Prague 1 - Nove Mesto,
has been incorporated in the Commercial Register administered by the Municipal Court in Prague,

Section C, entry no. 88504, under Identification No. 26704153.
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We communicate with the Board of Directors of Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s. regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o.
License No. 401

Jifi Kfepelka, Auditor
License No. 2163

13 April 2021
Prague, Czech Republic

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o. with its registered office at Na Florenci 2116/15, 110 00 Prague 1 - Nove Mesto,
has been incorporated in the Commercial Register administered by the Municipal Court in Prague,

Section C, entry no. 88504, under Identification No. 26704153.



Sub-fund Profile

Sub-fund description
Name: Inven Capital — Subfund B

Identification data
Alternative ID No. (NIC): 751 60 706
Tax Identification No. (DIC): CZ684366252

Registered Office

Street: Pod kfizkem 1773/2
District: Branik

Post code: 147 00 Prague 4

Establishment of the Fund

On 1 September 2013, CEZ Nova energetika, a.s. (original name of the Fund prior to the granting
of a license), was formed as a non-regulated joint-stock company established by CEZ, a. s.,
Company ID No. (ICO): 45274649, with registered office located at Duhovéa 2/1444, Prague 4, post
code 140 53, registered in the Commercial Register maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague,
Section B, Entry No. 1581, as the sole founder and shareholder.

With effect from 4 September 2014, CEZ Nova energetika, a.s., was registered in the register
maintained by CNB pursuant to Section 596(f) of the Act.

With effect from 10 December 2015, the ownership of 4 shares issued by CEZ Nova energetika, a.s.,
was transferred to CEZ Teplarenska, a. s., Company ID No. (ICO): 273 09 941, with registered office
located at Rigany, Bezrudova 2212/30, zip code 251 01, registered in the Commercial Register
maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B, Entry No. 17910.

The CNB’s decision to grant a license to conduct the activities of an autonomous investment fund
came into legal force on 31 August 2016 and the company changed its business name to Inven
Capital, investi¢ni fond, a.s. with effect from 1 September 2016. Pursuant to Section 8(1) of the Act,
the Fund is authorized to manage itself. The Fund is not authorized to perform its own administration.
The Fund has submitted to the application of the Act upon the Fund’s own request.

With effect from 1 February 2018, the Fund as a joint-stock company was transformed into
a variable-capital joint-stock company (SICAV) pursuant to Section 367 of the Act; alongside the
change oflegal form, the company changed its name to Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.

Sub-fund

Inven Capital - Subfund B was created on 1 February 2018 by the decision of the Fund’s Board
of Directors and was registered in the register maintained by the CNB on 7 February 2018.
In accordance with Section 165(1) of the Act, the Sub-fund is, from an accounting and property
perspective, a part separated from the assets and liabilities of the Fund. The Fund has included in
the sub-funds the assets and liabilities arising from investment activities. All investment activities of

the Fund are carried out through the sub-funds.
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Each sub-fund has its own investment strategy and its own statute. The investment strategy is always
set out in the statute.

Shares

For each sub-fund, the Fund issues investment shares that represent equal shares in the fund capital
of the given sub-fund. The investment shares issued for a sub-fund have the following rights
attached: the right to a share in profit ensuing only from the performance of the given sub-fund and
the right to a share of the liquidation surplus ensuing only upon the dissolution of the sub-fund with
liquidation.

The shares are issued as no-par value (NPV) shares, i.e. shares with no nominal value listed on the
share. The investment shares of Subfund B are held by the European Investment Bank. As at
31 December 2020, 31,762 investment shares were issued for the Sub-fund. As at 31 December
2020, the fund capital amounted to CZK 657,804 thousand.

The currency of the investment shares of Subfund B is in EUR. The Company’s shares have been issued
as securities and have not been admitted to trading on a regulated market, i.e. they are not listed on any
regulated (or other European) market or admitted to trading in any multilateral trading facility.

Net business assets: CZK 657,804 thousand

Bodies of the Sub-fund

Board of Directors

Chairman of the Board of Directors Ing. Petr Mikovec (since 27 February 2015)
Address: Na Kralovce 508/3, VrSovice, 101 00 Prague 10
Date of birth: 24 May 1974

Vice-Chair of the Board of Directors Ing. Ivo Némejc (since 1 February 2017)
Address: Chrustenice no. 212, 267 12 Chrustenice
Date of birth: 5 May 1977

Member of the Board of Directors  Ing. Viktor MiSkovsky (since 1 February 2017)
Address: Ceské druziny 1947/19, Dejvice, 160 00 Prague 6
Date of birth: 12 April 1968

The Board of Directors is the statutory body of the Fund, which is responsible for management of the
Fund and represents the Fund externally. The Board of Directors follows generally binding legal
regulations, the Articles of Association and the Statute of the Fund and its sub-funds, if established.
Among other things, the Board of Directors further convenes the General Meeting of the Fund and
approves amendments to the Statute of the Fund and its sub-funds, if established. The Board of
Directors is elected by the Fund’s General Meeting and has three members.

The fundamentals of the Fund’s business management fall within the competence of the Fund.

The members of the Board of Directors are authorized to perform their activities based on a CNB
decision to carry out investment company activity. An authorized representative of the Board of
Directors has the prior consent of CNB to perform its function.

9



Supervisory Board

Chairman of the Supervisory Board Ing. Tomas Pleska¢, MBA (since 30 May 2016)
Date of birth: 8 November 1966 (member since 1 February 2016)
Education: university degree

Vice-Chair of the Supervisory Board  Ing. Martin Novak, MBA (since 16 March 2015)
Date of birth: 2 May 1971 (member since 30 August 2014)
Education: university degree

Member of the Supervisory Board Magr. Ing. Vojtéch Kopp (since 30 December 2014)
Date of birth: 12 July 1981 (member since 30 August 2014)
Education: university degree

The Supervisory Board supervises the proper performance of the Fund’s activities, as well as carries
out other activities stipulated by generally binding legal regulations;
it consists of three members elected by the General Meeting.

Information on changes of facts recorded in the Commercial Register that occurred in the
Reporting Period

The Sub-fund constitutes a part of the assets and liabilities of the Fund, separated for accounting
and property purposes; the Sub-fund is without legal personality and is not registered in the
Commercial Register.

Information on the investment company managing the Sub-fund in the Accounting Period
The Fund is an autonomous investment fund authorized to manage itself pursuant to the license
to perform the activities of an autonomous investment fund granted by the CNB. Pursuant to the
provision of Section 8(2) of the Act, the Fund is the manager of the Fund. The manager of the Fund,
i.e. the Fund, is also the manager of the sub-funds created by the Fund.

In the Accounting Period, the manager carried out regular activities stipulated in and compliant
with the Fund’s statute and the Sub-fund’s statute.

Members of the Board of Directors act as portfolio managers.

Chairman of the Board of Directors Ing. Petr Mikovec (since 27 February 2015)
Date of birth: 24 May 1974 (member since 1 September 2013)
Education: university degree

1998 — 2003  Patria Finance, a.s.: Online business division manager

2004 — 2006 CEZ, a.s.: Analysis and forecasting specialist

2007 —2007 CEZ, a.s.: Strategy project manager

2007 —2008 CEZ, a.s.: Product evaluation department head

2008 —2010 CEZ, a.s.: Portfolio assessment division head

2010 -2012 CEZ, a.s.: Portfolio assessment division manager

2010 -2014 CEZ, a.s.: Director of the business development division, CEZ Group

10



Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors Ing. lvo Némejc (since 1 Feb. 2017)
Date of birth: 5 May 1977
Education: university degree

1998 - 2001 NEWTON Holding, a.s.: Financial analyst

2001 —2005 NEWTON Management, a.s.: Project manager

2005 -2006 BAWAG Bank CZ, a.s.: Corporate Finance team leader

2006 — 2009 LBBW Bank CZ a.s.: Structured financing director

2010-2014 LBBW Bank CZ a.s.: Director for large corporate clients and structured financing

Member of the Board of Directors Ing. Viktor MiSkovsky (since 1 Feb. 2017)
Date of birth: 12 April 1968
Education: university degree

1995 — 2002 Arthur Andersen, a.s.: Senior Manager

2002 — 2005 Horizon Energy Devlopment/United Energy: CFO in Horizon Energy Deveopment s.r.o.,
chairman of the Supervisory Board of United Energy a.s., member of the Board of Directors
of Teplarny Liberec, a.s.

2005 — 2007 Zapadoceska energetika, a. s.. CEO and chairman of the BoD

2008 — 2015 Wikov Wind, a. s.: CEO and member of the BoD

Major factors affecting the Sub-fund’s economic results

In 2020, the Sub-fund recorded a loss in connection with the operating costs incurred in the
administration of the Sub-fund investing in growth-stage cleantech startups in Europe with scalable
business models proven by sales and a strong growth potential.

Information on the investment Sub-fund’s Depositary
Business name: Ceska sporitelna, a.s.

Registered office: Olbrachtova 1929/62, 140 00 Prague 4
Company ID No. (ICO): 452 44 782

The performance of the activities of a depositary by Ceska spofitelna is governed by the Depositary
Agreement of 1 February 2018. Pursuant to the Agreement, the Depositary undertakes to act as a
depositary for the fund pursuant to Act No. 240/2013 Coll., on Investment Companies and Investment
Funds, and Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No. 231/2013 supplementing Directive
2011/61/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council.

Information on persons to whom the safekeeping or custody of the Fund’s assets was
delegated by the Depositary, if they safekeep or otherwise hold in custody more than 1% of
the Fund’s assets

The Depositary currently uses the services of Clearstream Banking S.A. Luxembourg and Erste
Group Bank AG for the settlement and clearing of foreign securities and the services of the Central
Securities Depositary (Centralni depozitaF cennych papir(, a. s.) for the settlement and clearing of
stock-exchange transactions with the securities traded on the Prague Stock Exchange (Burza
cennych papird Praha, a.s.), or the Czech National Bank’s short-term bond system and local
custodians for the markets in Poland, Slovakia, Hungary, Croatia, Romania and Turkey.
The collaborating entities may change over time, particularly when entering new markets.
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Information on the prime broker
No persons authorized to provide investment services acted as the prime broker for the Sub-fund In
the Accounting Period. The Sub-fund did not have a prime broker.

Identification of assets with value exceeding 1% of the total value of the Sub-fund’s resources
The Sub-fund’'s assets in excess of 1% of the total value of the Sub-fund’s resources as at the
Valuation Date comprise ownership interests in Tado GmbH, Cloud & Heat Technologies GmbH,
Cosmo Tech S.A.S., NeuronSW SE, Zolar GmbH, Elig AB, Forto GmbH and Topite.cz, s.r.o.
amounting to CZK 667,100 thousand. The Sub-fund’s interest in each company is up to 10% for most
companies, except for Tado GmbH and Topite.cz, s.r.o. where it reaches almost 12%. Other assets
of CZK 38,371 thousand consist of convertible loans to NeuronSW SE and Cloud & Heat
Technologies GmbH in the amount of CZK 25,445 thousand, derivatives for these loans and
a derivative contract for the equity bridge of Tado GmbH totaling CZK 12,926 thousand. The item
Due from banks and cooperative savings associations in the amount of CZK 12,218 thousand
includes a bank account balance.

Information on the remuneration of employees and officers paid to the Fund’s employees
and officers by the Sub-fund’s manager

The Fund, as the Sub-fund’'s manager, has disclosed in its annual report information on the wages,
remuneration, fees and similar income paid to its employees and officers, broken down as stipulated
by the applicable regulations. The employees and officers’ fees and other remuneration are paid out
of the Management fee; the Management Fee for 2020 amounted to CZK 27,020 thousand.

Information on the remuneration of employees and officers paid by the Sub-fund to the
employees or officers whose activity has a significant impact on the Sub-fund’s risk profile
The Sub-fund did not make any such payments in the Accounting Period.

Information on research and development activities
The Sub-fund did not engage in any R&D activities in the Reporting Period.

Information on securities financing transactions (SFT)
No such transactions took place in the Accounting Period.

Information on environmental protection activities and labor relations

The Sub-Fund, being a part separated from the assets and liabilities of the Fund from an accounting
and property perspective, is not involved in environmental protection; however, in the Accounting
Period, Inven Capital fully offset its CO2 emissions by planting trees in cooperation with the non-
profit organization Sazime stromy and became carbon neutral. In connection with its membership in
the international Leaders for Climate Action initiative, it also seeks to reduce its carbon footprint, for
example by consuming electricity exclusively from renewable sources, printing on recycled paper or
reducing air travel.

Since the Sub-fund is, from an accounting and property perspective, a part separated from the assets
and liabilities of the Fund, the Sub-fund did not have any employees in the Accounting Period.

Foreign branch or a part of the undertaking abroad
The Sub-fund has no foreign branch or a part of the undertaking abroad.

12



The Sub-fund’s fund capital and changes in share value

Balance as at: 31/ 12/ 2020 31/ 12/ 2019 31/ 12/ 2018
Fund capital of Subfund B (EUR): 25,063,962 12,415,935 10,251,950
Number of the Sub-fund’s investment shares

issued and outstanding at the end of the 31,762 16,587 12,261

Accounting Period:

Number of the Sub-fund’s investment shares
issued in the Accounting Period:

Number of the Sub-fund’s investment shares
purchased in the Accounting Period:

Fund capital of Subfund B per 1 share (EUR): 789.1178 748.5340 836.1430
[Share value in 2020 (in CZK)]

15,175 4,326 12,261

Vyvoj hodnoty akcie v roce 2020 (K&)
1200

1100
1000
e00

800
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500
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Information on the acquisition of own shares or ownership interests
The Sub-fund did not acquire its own shares or ownership interests in 2020.

Information on major changes in the Sub-fund’s Statute
The following significant changes to the Sub-fund’s Statute were made in the Accounting Period:

With effect from 16 December 2020, following the approval of the General Meeting, the Statute of
Inven Capital — Subfund B was amended as follows: the types of assets that may be acquired in the
Sub-fund’s assets now include bonds (including convertible bonds) or other similar instruments.
In addition, an option has been added to provide loans and borrowings only to target companies, as
part of a convertible loan (including in the form of investments in convertible bonds or other similar
instruments) to target companies in which the Sub-fund does not hold a stake but on the basis of
which it will have an option or other similar right to acquire such an ownership interest in the target
companies.

Furthermore, the investment and divestment phase has been precisely specified, where the
investment phase ends on 31 December 2021 and the divestment phase begins immediately after
the end of the investment phase and lasts for 5 years. As for the divestment phase, it is now possible
to invest in portfolio companies in which the Sub-fund already has an ownership interest, under the
conditions set out in the Statute, in order to develop the investment to maintain or increase the value
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of the company. It has been further added that the divestment period may be extended for a period
shorter than one year based on a decision of the Fund’s Board of Directors.

On the recommendation of the internal audit, the selection of advisors for other than financial and
legal due diligence was adjusted; such advisors will be selected by the Fund’s Board of Directors in
accordance with the internal regulation on the rules for advisor selection.

Effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on the entity

The Fund’s management monitored the situation in the Target Companies throughout the year and
continued its initiatives from early 2020, when it responded to the first wave of the coronavirus crisis
and initiated establishing of crisis plans in the Target Companies. These plans include (a) internal
measures to ensure uninterrupted operations of the companies and protection of their employees,
(b) analysis of the impact on business operations, including elimination measures (e.g., different way
of communicating with customers, pre-stocking, alternative sales channels), and (c) analysis of the
impact on the financial plan and related solutions to mitigate it as much as possible. The solutions in
question include both a detailed analysis of possible cost reduction and its impact on the companies’
performance, drawing on various support programs, etc.

None of the Target Companies has been materially adversely affected by the COVID pandemic as at
the financial statements date. The 2020 year-end valuation of the companies reflects the estimated
impact of COVID-19 on individual investments; no significant impairment due to the pandemic has
been recorded for any of these investments. This results from the Target Companies’ scope of
business, as most of the innovative products offered by the companies include IT solutions that are
put to use despite the said constraints.

Subsequent events

In the first months of 2021, the world was hit by another wave of COVID-19. To suppress the virus,
large-scale measures have been taken in a number of countries (e.g. restrictions on the movement
of people), causing significant economic damage. In most countries, vaccination of the population
has begun, which should allow a gradual relaxation of restrictions and a return to the original
functioning of the economy.

The Fund’s management has considered the impacts of COVID-19 on its activities and business to
date as well as the current situation of the Target Companies and concluded that they did not have
a significant effect on the Fund’'s going concern assumption. Accordingly, the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020 were prepared on the assumption that the Company would
be able to continue as a going concern.

Comments on the Annexes attached

This Annual Report includes Annexes that include information on the Sub-fund’s performance.
In accordance with the generally binding legal regulations, this Annual Report also includes the
financial statements, including the notes to the financial statements, and the Independent Auditor's
Report. The Report on Relations is prepared at the level of the Fund. The figures contained in the
Annexes are in CZK thousands (unless otherwise stated). The investment fund’s balance sheet and
income statement contain data structured according to special accounting legislation. Each caption
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contains information on the amount for the immediately preceding reporting period. If certain tables

or values are not filled in, the corresponding value is zero. Further information is provided in the notes
to the financial statements.

In Prague, 13 March 2021

W—\ :
[
Inven ;a{él, SICAV, a.s. Inven Capital, SIG{\AV, a.s.

Ing. lvo/Némejc Ing. Viktor MisSkovgky
Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors
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Business activities, state of assets and
ownership interests

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., Company ID No. (ICO): 02059533,
registered office: Pod kfizkem 1773/2, 147 00 Prague 4, registered
in the Commercial Register maintained by the Municipal Court
in Prague under File No. B 19323

Sub-fund Inven Capital — Subfund B

S et L | periog from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020

1. Sub-fund’s activities in the Accounting Period

Inven Capital - Subfund B focuses on investments in growth-stage cleantech startups from the
European Union, with scalable business models proven by sales and a strong growth potential.
The Sub-fund is interested in sectors such as energy efficiency, distributed power generation,
flexibility and energy storage, energy data services, clean transport, smart city, etc.

Subfund B has invested in eight companies (four German ones, one French, two Czech and one
Swedish) and has invested more than a half of its investment framework. The companies are as follows:

tado GmbH — the company is developing a platform for smart household temperature control based
on the user’s location and habits.

Cloud & Heat Technologies GmbH — designer, supplier and operator of highly energy- and cost-
efficient distributed data centers using the heat of water-cooled servers for heating and hot water
supply.

Cosmo Tech S.A.S. — supplier of a software platform for complex system modelling providing key
information to optimize decision-making in the management of critical infrastructure and processes.

NeuronSW SE — a technology company that has developed a comprehensive Al solution for sound
analysis to predict machine failures.

Zolar GmbH — the company’s digital platform is applied in the installation of photovoltaic panels and
battery systems in family houses through external plumbing companies, which it consolidates within
its platform.

Eliq AB — the company’s software platform collects and analyzes data on customers’ consumption
and production of electricity from smart meters, combines the data with additional information on the
consumption of household appliances and provides its customers with an overview of their
consumption, including energy savings options, which reduces customer fluctuation and the cost of
servicing them and provides additional space for upselling.

Forto GmbH — European digital freight forwarder, which develops a platform working with real-time
data, optimizes transport, allows customers to order transport, track their shipments and handle all
online administration, including the choice of transport method with regard to emissions; focuses
mainly on relations between Asia and Europe.
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Topite.cz s.r.o0. — the company develops a digital platform that simplifies the selection, ordering and
installation of heating equipment, while connecting customers and technology through this platform.

In 2020, more than 480 investment opportunities were assessed, with three new investments made in
the Swedish company Eliq, the German company Forto, the Czech company Topite.cz; at the same
time there were additional investments in the companies Cloud & Heat, Tado, NeuronSW and Zolar.

2. Sub-fund’s results

The annual financial statements for the Accounting Period including the notes to the financial
statements, together with the auditor's report that constitutes an inseparable part of the Annual
Report, give a fair and comprehensive view of the Sub-fund’s financial performance.

The Sub-fund is, from an accounting and property perspective, a part separated from the assets and
liabilities of the Fund. The accounting records reflect the Sub-fund’s assets and liabilities and other
facts to allow for the preparation of a separate set of financial statements of the Sub-fund. This
Annual Report is also a separate annual report of the Sub-fund. The Sub-fund has no legal
personality; information concerning its bodies is therefore contained in the Fund’s Annual Report.

In 2020, the company recorded a loss of CZK 17,526 thousand. The loss was connected in particular
with the operating costs incurred in the administration of Subfund B in the implementation of
investments.

3. State of assets

The value of the Sub-fund’s assets increased by 129.17% year-on-year (i.e. by CZK 408,020
thousand). The increase in assets was mainly due to ownership interests in companies (an increase
of CZK 395,789 thousand), which increased thanks to three new investments, additional investments
and the effect of revaluation.

The Sub-fund’s portfolio is financed through own resources (90.87%), in particular capital funds; the
remaining percentage (9.13%) includes short-term liabilities in the form of other liabilities.

Assets

In the balance sheet as at 31 December 2020, the Sub-fund reported assets totaling CZK 723,895
thousand. These assets mainly consist of shares, unit certificates and other interests in Tado,
Cloud & Heat Technologies, CosmoTech, NeuronSW, Zolar, Eliq, Forto a Topite in the amount of
CZK 667,100 thousand, other assets of CZK 38,371 thousand, due from banks in the amount of CZK
12,218 thousand and prepaid expenses of CZK 6,206 thousand. The fair value of ownership interests
was determined on the basis of an expert opinion prepared by Deloitte as at 31 December 2020.

Liabilities

In the balance sheet as at 31 December 2020, the company reported liabilities totaling CZK 723,895
thousand. These consisted of equity of CZK 657,804 thousand and other liabilities in the amount of
CZK 66,091 thousand, which represent mainly liabilities to shareholders of CZK 65,859 thousand.

The number of investment shares issued for Subfund B is 31,762. The loss for the period was CZK
17,526 thousand.
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Structure of assets as at 31/ 12/ 2020 (in CZK thousands) Structure of liabilities as at 31/ 12/ 2020 (in CZK thousands)

Available-for sale long-term securities and interests Other liabilities
Prepaid expenses and accrued income Gains/losses from revaluation
Bank accounts Undistributed profit/loss

Profit/loss for the period
Capital funds

Cash flow
Net increase in cash as at 31 December 2020 amounted to CZK 11,710 thousand.

The cash flow from operating activities at the end of the reporting period amounted to CZK 45,037
thousand; as at 31 December 2019, it was CZK (26,428) thousand, which represents an increase of
CZK 71,465 thousand. The cash flow was affected by the reported accounting profit from ordinary
activities before taxation inthe amount of CZK (20,147) thousand and a change in non-cash
components of working capital of CZK 65,184 thousand, including changes of prepaid expenses
totaling CZK (520) thousand and other liabilities of CZK 65,704 thousand.

The net cash flow related to investing activities amounted to CZK (352,948) thousand at the end of
the Accounting Period; at the end of the previous period it was CZK (62,410) thousand; its amount
was affected by the costs associated with the acquisition of fixed assets in the very amount of CZK
(352,948) thousand.

The net cash flow related to financial activities at the end of the Accounting Period amounted to CZK
319,621 thousand. At the end of the previous period it was CZK 87,687 thousand; its amount was
affected by the impact of changes in equity on cash totaling CZK 319,621 thousand.

At the end of the period, cash and cash equivalents increased by CZK 11,710 thousand compared to the
previous accounting period, which represented the very net increase in cash and cash equivalents.
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4. Projected development

Business-wise, the company aims to complete one to two investments in the forthcoming period
depending on the quality of investment opportunities and continue a detailed analysis of selected
sectors in the Czech Republic and EU countries including the assessment of approximately 300
companies per year in order to create a strong portfolio of future energy companies. Another key
task will be to successfully complete the sales of Target Companies.

The Fund’s management will continue to monitor the situation regarding the COVID-19 pandemic.
One of the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic has been the acceleration of some trends such as
digitization, remote access, decentralization and energy self-sufficiency. These areas experience
increased demand for new solutions, and for many Target Companies, the crisis represents an
opportunity for faster growth and value.
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Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.

Report on Relations of Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.
for 2020

Date of preparation: March 2021 Appendices: 1

This Report has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 82 of Act No. 90/2012 Coll., on
Business Corporations (the Corporations Act). In accordance with the Corporations Act, the Report
describes relations between the Controlling entity and the Controlled entity and between the
Controlled entity and entities controlled by the same Controlling entity; pursuant to the provisions of
Section 82, para. 1 through 4 of the Corporations Act, the Report has been prepared for the past
accounting period (from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020).

1. Structure of Relations

Controlled Entity and Author of Report on Relations

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.
Business reg. No.: 020 59 533
Registered office: Pod kfizkem 1773/2, Branik, 147 00 Prague 4,

Entered in the Commercial Register maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B,
Insert no. 19323.

Controlling entity

CEZ, a.s.
Business reg. No.: 45274649
Registered office: Prague 4, Duhova 2/1444, Zip code 140 53

Entered in the Commercial Register maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B,
Insert no. 1581.

As at 31 December 2020, 100% of the founder’s shares are held by CEZ, a.s., with its registered
office in Prague 4, Duhova 2/1444, zip code 140 53, business reg. no.: 45274649.

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., may establish sub-funds pursuant to Section 165 et seq. of the Act on
Management Companies and Investment Funds. The sub-fund is, from an accounting and property
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perspective, a part separated from the assets and liabilities of the Company. The Fund has so far
established two sub-funds: Inven Capital — Subfund A and Inven Capital — Subfund B.

As at 31 December 2020, CEZ, a.s., with its registered office in Prague 4, Duhova 2/1444, zip code
140 53, business reg. no.: 45274649, and CEZ Teplarenska, a.s., with its registered office in Ricany,
BezruCova 2212/30, zip code 251 01, business reg. no.: 27309941, hold 99.81% and 0.19%,
respectively of investment shares in Inven Capital - Subfund A. CEZ Teplarenska, a.s., is an entity
controlled by CEZ, a.s.

As at 31 December 2020, 100% of investment shares in Inven Capital - Subfund B are held by the
European Investment Bank (EIB), with its registered office at 98-100 boulevard Konrad Adenauer,
L-2950 Luxembourg.

The Czech Republic, i.e. the Ministry of Finance, owns shares corresponding to 69.78% of the share
capital of the Controlling entity, CEZ, a.s.

Other entities controlled by the same controlling entity

According to the information provided by CEZ, a.s., the Board of Directors of Inven Capital, SICAV,
a.s., has prepared a scheme of the structure of relations between entities controlled by the same
controlling entity, that is the entities controlled by CEZ, a.s.

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., is included in the CEZ Group; the CEZ Group also includes the CEZ
Concern, led by CEZ, a.s., as the managing entity. Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., is not a member of
the CEZ Concern.

2. Scheme of relations

For the scheme of relations see Appendix No. 1 to this Report.

3. Controlled entity’s role

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., is a self-governing investment fund that aims to bring CEZ Group know-
how, capacities and products in the field of “new energy” — especially in the area of energy services
and products for end customers, new technologies, decentralized resources, etc. in the EU region
and other nearby markets. The investment activities of Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., should provide
the CEZ Group with innovative products and companies, as well as additional revenues and
synergies with the present customer and product portfolio of the CEZ Group.



4. Method and means of control

CEZ, as., directly controls Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s,, i.e. it is the majority shareholder of Inven
Capital, SICAV, a.s., and holds 100% of its founder’s shares. With regard to the above, CEZ, a.s., is
entitled to appoint or recall a majority of the controlled entity’s statutory body members.

5. Summary of actions taken during the accounting period at the initiative or in the interest
of other related parties

In March 2020, the repurchase of investment shares of the Inven Capital - Subfund A in the amount
of CZK 961.68 million was settled on the basis of ashare repurchase request submitted
in September 2019 by the investor CEZ, a.s.

No acts pertaining to the assets with a value exceeding 10% of the controlled entity’s equity as stated
in the most recent financial statements were carried out at the initiative or in the interest of the
controlling entity or entities controlled by it.

6. Overview of agreements between related parties

The below overview includes agreements concluded between Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s. (formerly
Inven Capital, investi¢ni fond, a.s., and CEZ Nova energetika, a.s.) and CEZ, a.s., and other entities
controlled by the same controlling entity; it includes not only agreements concluded in the relevant

accounting period, but all agreements existing (i.e. effective) in 2020.

Contracting parties

Contract number

Subject matter and date

Inven Capital, investi¢ni fond,
a.s., and CEZ, as.

Agreement on mutual credit frameworks

in connection with the agreement on the
provision of multi-level flexi on-line real mutual
cash pooling in CZK for an economically
related group, dated 28 January 2016, incl.
Amendments no. 1 through 4

Inven Capital, investi¢ni fond,
a.s., and CEZ, as.

Agreement on mutual credit frameworks

in connection with the agreement on the
provision of multi-level flexi on-line real mutual
cash pooling in EUR for an economically
related group, dated 28 January 2016, incl.
Amendments no. 1 and 2

Inven Capital, investi¢ni fond,

Entrustment agreement on the performance of
an individual activity, incl. management of an

a.s.,and CEZ, as. ARHOD0RISR investment fund (performance of an internal
audit) dated 8 March 2018
. License agreement on the provision of the
lnven Capital, SIGAY, .5, and 5600011270 right to use trademark effective from

CEZ, a.s.

9 January 2020




CEZ Nova energetika, a.s. a
CEZ, ass.

5600005989

Contract for the provision of services — media
services (website) dated 18 June 2015 incl.
Amendment no. 1 dated 24 September 2020

Inven Capital, investi¢ni fond,
a.s.,and CEZ, as.

Service Level Agreement (SLA) dated
6 November 2017, incl. Amendments no. 1, 2
and 3

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., and
CEZ, a.s.

Agreement on subscription, issue and
repurchase of investment shares dated
21 February 2018

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., and
CEZ Korporatni sluzby, s.r.o.

110635_2017

Sub-contract for lease of vehicles and
provision of vehicle-related services (contract
type designation: PD1), incl. Amendments
no. 1 and 2

CEZ Nova energetika, a.s. a
CEZ Korporatni sluzby, s.r.o.

110182_2014

Sub-contract for the lease of vehicles (car
rental) dated

13 June 2014, incl. Amendments no. 1
through 6

CEZ Nova energetika, a.s. a
CEZ Korporatni sluzby, s.r.o.

110180_2014

Framework agreement on the provision of
services and leases dated 17 June 2014, incl.
Amendment no. 1 and 2

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., and
CEZ Korporatni sluzby, s.r.o.

110277_2018

Agreement on the processing of personal data
to the Framework agreement on the provision
of services and leases dated 22 May 2018,
incl. Amendments no. 1 and 2

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., and
CEZ Korporatni sluzby, s.r.o.

110939_2019

Sub-agreement on the provision of printing
and reprographic services to the Framework
agreement on the provision of services and
leases dated 13 January 2020

CEZ Nova energetika, a.s. a

Framework agreement on the provision of
services

CEZ ICT Services, s.r.o. 2012014

dated 28 February 2014
Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., and | ECM number: ggtr}f:r;;”;zcvgrf :g'?:j;ﬂ:foc’: E()r\e;S;rr:)ilis(::g:la
CEZ ICT Services, s.r.o. P3A18000014149 of services No. 20/2014 dated 30 July 2018
CEZ Nova energetika, a.s. a 21/2014 Sub-contract for the provision of services

CEZ ICT Services, s.r.o.

dated 28 February 2014

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., and
CEZ Prodej, a.s.

0201502284, 0201502287,
0201502320, 0201502323

Contracts for combined services of electricity
supply from LV networks dated 2 April 2020

All the above agreements were signed at arm’s length; provided counter-performance corresponded
to arm’s-length conditions as well.




7. Assessment of any detriment suffered by the Controlled entity and possible
compensation

In view of the legal relations between the Controlled entity and other Related Parties, it is evident
that the Controlled entity suffered no detriment as a result of agreements, other legal actions or other
measures concluded, made or accepted by the Controlled entity in the accounting period. For this
reason, no compensation has been assessed.

8. Assessment of benefits and drawbacks arising from relations between related parties

Based on the available information, the Board of Directors assessed the benefits and drawbacks of
the Company’s membership in the CEZ Group and concluded that the benefits outweighed and that
the Company generally profits from being a part of the entire concern. For example, the Company
benefits from the financial stability of the CEZ Group, its good reputation, as well as related cost
savings in the area of marketing, procurement, administration, etc. In addition, it uses service
outsourcing, cash pooling, and advanced cooperation options within the CEZ Group. The Board of
Directors is not aware of any risks arising from the relations between the entities described above,
which would not be provided for by standard means.

9. Other actions

In 2020, Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., did not perform any actions at the initiative or in the interest of
the Controlling entity or its controlled entities, which should be included in this Report pursuant to the
provisions of Section 82 para. d) of the Corporations Act.

10. Conclusion and Representation

This Report on Relations between Related Parties has been prepared by the statutory body of Inven
Capital, SICAV, a.s., within the legal deadline.

The statutory body declares that the above overview is complete and true. All activities have been
carried out in accordance with the provisions of the Corporations Act and have not been intended to
obscure any other relationship.



This Report on Relations does not contain information the disclosure of which could cause material
damage to Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s. Furthermore, no information herein shall be deemed a trade
secret or classified information under special legislation.

The Report has been prepared to the best of the authors’ knowledge and belief; the authors drew on
all available materials and documents with every effort.

This Report is subject to review by the Supervisory Board of Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.

In Prague, 2 March 2021

«

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s. Inven C41|, SICAV, a.s.
Ing. Petr Mikovec Ing. Ilvo Némejc
Board of Directors Chair Board of Directors Vice-Chair

Appendix 1: Structure of relationships scheme
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zméns zidla 12. 5. 2020 indvodne kit Kocaek, Kariex Mah. Sehit Rsiot Karacan Buhan Yioe Aike Sic No. 10, PSC 42040}
E0 L N Sekarya Blektrik Dufjition AS. 3004118578 Tumcko Adszran, Sakay, Maliepe Maholiesi, Orhangazi Cad. No. 268, TEX Trafo lamsyonu PK. 180, PSC 56100
100% s‘-n&mm*nasmg_s 25287 Tumcko b2, Kocaek, Yahyskomian Mahalest, Soval Sckak, No. 4/1, PSC 41050
Mahallesi, Hafe Selim Sokak 0-100. Krayolu Uzt No. 14 Ofiz, Na. 25-21 PSC 35430
[~ 37.36% h&ﬁm 255005 Tumcko |zl Mirsloy Sefikc Bey Soiak, Akhen No. 16, Gumugsuyu Beyoghy, PSC 34437
736021 Tumcko Iz==rinul, Mirsiay Sefik Bey Sokak, Na. 15, Kat: 1 Odx: 1, Gurmugsuyu Beyogiu, PSC 34437
TaL3F Tumcko lsmriul, Miralsy Sefiv Boy Sokak, Akhen No. 15, K= &, Odex: 3, Gumagsuyu Beyoglu, PSC 34437
512971 Tumcko |z, Mirsiay Sefik Bey Sokak, Akhan No. 16, Ka= 3-4, Odx: 2, Gumugsuyu Boyogly, PSS 34437
95,99 % 132002 Craiowe, jud. Doff. O7, Calen Sevarinuis, PSC 200731

Bucuresti, 28 lon lonescu de lz Brad, Sector 2, PSC 013853
Pesita, jud. Carag Severin, 4B Premaer, PSC 220012

Bucuresti, 2B lon lonezau de Iz Brad, Sector 1, PSC 013813
Bucuresti, 2B lon lonesau de ln Brad, Sectr 1, FSC 013313
Encuragti, 28 lon lonesas de b Brad, Secior 1, FSC 013813
Bucuresti, 28 fon lonesau o fa Brad, Sector 1. PSC 012213

Zmena pra formy sockeencati od 1. 10. 2020 (plvodna S.FL)

F100% LT 21345603 Craiove, jud. Dol OF. Calea Severinuks, PSC 200731

- 100% (- = 135206704013 1130 Budzpezt, Rétkar u. 5, FSC ma

- 100% - 20180550 Beograd, Buevr Zormna Bindice 65, PSC 110,70

- 100% - 34728482 K, Velyken Vosplkisica 5, RSC 01004

o 100% - 7 Hamburg, Am Sandhoria 74, PSC 20457

- 100% (== . 0000321795 Chaczom, . Mari Skiodowsikis Cur 30, PSC 41503

- 100% - - D 0000267855 Warzawa, Asje Jeromimsice 62, PSC 00807

L 100 = B 157, PSC nd1 CN
kLY Baitic Gre struction sp 0000588025 ‘War=awa, Aleje Jerosolimzide 63, RSC 00807

2 WMWm&pmG\ PSC D3

— 100!& Balic Green | 50.= 0.0
procsf 100% podiu 4. 5.2020

L3 Bultio Groon llap. = o 00004302
riodné Warzwe, Alse dererclimekie £ PSC 0G.£0T)

Warzawa, Aloje Jeromiimeice 61, PSC 00867

Warzawa, Alsje Jermsmlimaide 53, PSS 00807

= 0000«40952 ‘Warzmawa, Neje Jercesiirsice 52, PSC00.557
odis 2020 {pIvodne ‘Warzmmws, Alse Jercxdimaioe B ASC 00697)

B DOCOEY0284 War=awa, Ao Jormsimziee 83, PSC 00857
smena zdls 1. 5. 2020 |pivodng Warzswe, Alse Jererdlimsios G PSC 00.637)

- 100w I T OD0EM207 Warsaws, Aje Jorssierkic 31, PSC 00537

— 0000518818 Warzawz, Asje Jerozlereioe 53, PSC 00807

= 100*- 000060022 Warzzawa, Alsje Jeramimskie 62, PSC 00507
zsrazdia 16 2020 |phiodns Wz, Alse serseslimzias 01 PSCO0CO7

il 2 Y EcoWind Construction SA. w ‘2000300428 Warzrawa, ul Maynarske 11 FSC 02674

g
fER TR R R R E'Hﬁﬁgg L




BE7R2257 b A B weg 157, PSC 1101 ON
CEZESCO BM 1. 1. 2020 (plwvochy rwev CEZ New Eromy EV); zntna nzu i ray Blevsion Group EV. 21. 6. 2020 |pivodnt nasow CEZ ESCO Inemational BV, dne 18, 12. 207 byl do chehadniho myztric.
wadeneha Memiziem soudsm v Praos pod zpisovou snaskou A 73331 zoozan odteony zavod "CEZ ESCO 5 odmenny zavod; cne 17. 8. 2020 zmana namvu tohcto odawpneho mavos na Bevion Groun, odsasay zavod

R e zoa DOCOGTEIE  Poks Croezow, ul Skiaows 17, P58 £1.500

wyseni podily o 2258 % 4. €. 2020 (odvedne 5100 %1

—89,85% m&l‘xu-m ; . 0000508260 Poks Warzawz, Beje Jemeslmzice 53, PSC 00.607

C 00 vt 2o likvidass 28 7. 2020 navysers podiiy v dligedku vy zakisdniho kagiis 2. 9. 2020 [nivodne 50,30 61
0000309507 Pakbic Warzawna, Asje Jerrclmeice 53, PSC-00.007
2030; ravygent podiky v disiediu svysor Zakisdniho kasitaly 26. 11, 2000 (sivocne 00,30 %)

zmanz {plvodne 3 2
ek ESCO Gty H m. x 0.0, w Sewiciecs 0000858305 Pako Warzawa, Acje Jeromsimaide €3, PSC 00557

zrmena s 1. 5. 2020 [pivodne Warsmws, Aloe Jorezolimsas B1. PSC 00 637 vzt oo fikidaos 11. 5. 2020; nawsen padiuy disisdku 2ryeer zaklactho kepi: 14. 9. 2020 [pivocna 19,80 %)
0000743664 Pozks “Warzzawa, eje Jerozcimneice 63, RSE 00057
pivodnt Warzzmwz, Alse serazdlimsice G, PSC 00 807} vzius 2o likvidace 11. 5. 2020: nasens podlu v disedku arysers makladtho kapisu 23, 3. 2020 {sbvodne 03,80 %)
0000742613 Pogho Warzawa, Acje Joraiimalie 63, PSC 00067
smenz 2dis 1. 5. 2020 [plvodne Wermmwe, Al Jeracpiimsion B1, PSC 00637 vtus co fitidaos 1. 5 2020: nawion: podlu v cizedu vsen zakladhs kepasu 2. 10 2020 (aivocne 30,80 %)

RS STOCh Vi roa vl gt M Viarzawa,Nefn Jeessiereiie 5. PSS 20207

zroena sdia 1. 5. 2020 |pivodns War=mwe, Alee Jerardiimaioe £1, PSC 00.607); vatus oo fimvidaos 11. &W&anﬁhvammmm; ma. Zm”ba\nd'e 0930 %)
Paigkc rsC

000056701

Busiapea, Resicr uisn £ 2.em 2. PSC M8

Jorz, Gaactwitzr Strafie 55, PSC 07748
Jonz, Goschwitzer Strafe 58, PSC 07725
Jena, GEachwitzor Strafle 58, PSC 07746
Chomeizz, Max Saupe- Straie 80, PSC 08131

Dezxnbach, Desaistrae &, PSC 63123
Firmezenz, Delawans Mverus 23-25, PSC 66953
maww&mmzs

Eszmn, HobestraBe 7-T1a FSC 45141
dre 14. 2. 2020 o rochodrym drem fize 1. 1. 2020
KRS B0A730 Nermecka Schnstenbach, Am Scharhiibal 14, PSC 42253

NNONET43E005Y  Cira Shanghei, Wiaing Ficed No. 385, Baiding 4, Pudong Districe
HAB 207802 Nemecko ‘Womburp, Bodewiteer StraBe 11, PSC OF381
:H na Takiade zap=u do cbrhodniho mistrias dne 3. 3, 2020 = rachodryn chem fus 1. 1.2020
HRAE 2454 Nemacio Plafing, Dorizrafie 58, PSC Gasa?
— HAR 508518 Namocio i i am Main, 13, PSC 654238
— HAR D535 Nemacho » Joseshvon Fraurhaler Strafie 2. ASC 0106
HR3 108115 Nemechn Magdebisy, FaulEcko Sirafle 6, PSC 20112
= rchodnym drem fize 1 1. 2020
- 100% HAB 3008 Nemecko Mezxigau, GonenstraBe 19, PSC 05400
r— L[ W Hormos Gosslischaft fir Stouor, MaB- und Rogaltachek mbH HR3 100363 Nemecka Suhl, Pitachberpstrae 14, PSC 53527
il L 3 Hormos Systoms amw HRB 15037 Nermecio Dresdon, Hambumer Strafie 65, PSS INST
HRAZ 2187 Nemecia Mizwigau, Garenstrabe 15, PSC 05400
TUTOH Malsizie wwm&mmamm&anﬁnwamm
0000243856 Pobi L Powzmncow Siasicch, Iok. 1, PSC 47160
HABZ320 Nemecko wsnrmapsco..mo
gt HABZ00647TE  Nemecko Eerin, GonestztraBe £, FSC 10820
HAE1S598AE  Nemecko Endin, Gonegtzraie 5, PSC 10820
- HAE 43C51E Némocko Eerin GonestairaSe &, RSC 10820
HRE 100108 Nemncka Eprin. Genestziafe 5, PSC 10820
HAE 1500 B Nemecko Borin, GenestzraSe 5, 7SC 10820
HRE1821068  Mémecko Eerin, Gonestatrafe 5, PSC 10828
- HAB1360E  Nemesio Eerin. GenesttraSe 5, PSC 10820
- HAB1S3TEAE  Memecko Eorin. Gonestsraie 5, RSC 10620
L HAA 5438 Nemocio Gitersizh, Am Anger 35, PSC 33332
HRB 8588 Nemecko Gltersloh Am Ange 35, PSC 33322
f = S Bczanc, Via Galieo Galiet 10. PSC 20100
stevod 100% pocily zooiecnasti Kofler Enerios Enemie o GrsH na scketnoct CEX ESCO imemasional BV fmyry Blevion Growp BV} 2020; e namu socleenosti 22 7. 2020 [pivodnl nay KOFLEA ENERGES MALA SR}
Rl kY inewa consulling Sei DV740650211 Bsfin Bckeanc, Va Galieo Galiei 10, PSC 39100
=nére nimu sackecnost 22. 7. 2020 intvedni nae v SYNECO ENEAGY SERVICE SRL; smens sdls spoletncst 22. 7. 2020 |plvodns Belzana, Via Msss Cuse 17, PSC 25200)
L 100% 5 Bokano, Via Galieo Gaiiei 10, PSC 20100

SYNECO GROUP S.H.L ¢ . 22.7.2020( Boizano, Viz Mane Cune 17, PSC 30100)
2298040220 Rshe Bcizana, Vi Galies Galier 10, PSC 20100

2rmera zida soetnaz 22 7. 2020 (phvadne Mezoczronz [TNL Via Franoeses de Fontemn 25, PSC 3B013): néovoc 206 podlu srcesno= KOFLER ENZRGIES ITALIA SAL (mym Bevion Holding ki Sril na zocleénost inowa S 28, 7. 2020;

2120141208 e Monghidors (B0), Via Provingale 31, PSC 40083
BO470e e Eclogne, Viz dolis Lame 118, PSC 40122

Q4B Rurunghs Euzurestl, 28 lon fonescu do | Brad, Sector 1, PSC 013813
18645825 Aurunsios Popegleordant Judt ox. 1t Scx Beraeri, PSC V7100
21320316 Scbako Novi Sac, Buwar Ozdcbodionia 78, PSC 23000
FNS29023 Abzzm, Fio 132, PSC 6087

FN 262504 v A Abzzm, Sekhergzraie 13, PSC 5087

TNGITBECK Abcar, Saizser 13,558 8067

N 199600y Abzarm, Salshery 13a, PSC 6067



e e e e e e e e i e e g e g e e

I_, 2L CEZ AES infornational BLV.

Wy 157, PG 101 O
mambmmwwwm cawmmmmav Iz seainostt i <. 1. 2020 pemenovancy ne G ESOD imemationsl BV, = nasisdné & 21. £ 2000 dale praimenciency na Bevion Group 24 1. 1. 2020:
dne 24. 1. 2020 byl do obchodnit #icy wadensho M dorm v Prie ood sizovou natkou A TILZ20 zapoan odtiepry zvod moetnes G AES rermasional B\ = to ped conasenim CEZ FES ismasonal odspry zavod
- 100% E=4= b n Vol Garob HAE w1825 Nemecko mmmrgl&cma
:!wud\'DO‘ﬂpodhus CEZRES BV, v dmindias odf = sooetnozti C=F New Energy imvezrnens BV, [z winnozs k 1. 1. 2020 na CEZ ESCO = av. k215 2020
dale prmenovanou ne Bevicn Group BV 1. 1. 2020
- 100% (=1 s Ensrygsan B WAL X T L A ey HAB 157135 Nemaze Harmburg, den Sandorics 74, PSC 20457
pfevod 200% podilu na CeZ RES i BV, v diziedkyu od! > i C=Z New Energy imezsmeres BV. [z Gtinnozs k 1. L 2020 naCEZ ESCO BV anagedns k 21. 5 2020

dals pasrnengvancu m Elmwicn Group BV)) 1. 1. 2020

Toulouse 8 Esplanade Compans Coffardlk, Immoubie Azriz. PSE 21000

Toulouze Coder &, 2 Aue du Libe Echenge CS 05802, PSS 31508
Tououze Cedsx 5, 2 e du Libm Echange CS 05833, FSC 21505
Tououze Codex §, 2 Aue du Libe Echange CS 05803, PSC 31503
Tououse Codax &, 2 Aue du Libr Echange CS 05892, PSS 21505
Tououse Cedex 5.2 Aue dulibe Echange CS 05834, PSS 21503
Toulouse Cedex 5, 2 Aue du Libm Echenge CS 95892, PSC 21505
Tououse Codex 5, 2 Aue du Libe Echangs CS 05803, PSC215058
Tououse Codex §, 2 Flue du Libe Echenge £S 95802, RSC 21603
Toulouse Cadex 5, 2 s du Libe Echenge CS 95802, FSC 21505
Tououse Cedax 5,2 e du Libe Echangs CS 05802, PSC 21505
Touiouse Ceden 5, 2 Fle duLibe Echangs CS 55833, PSC 21508

Farme Golanns de Fesillsda ot Souffrignac SAS
Farme dolanac du Blesscnmar SAS

Farmae Solanna de Saugon SAS
Farma éofienne de Gonouillé SAS
Ferme solonne d"AlissNisul SAS
Farme sclanna de la Fotits Vainde SAS
Farme dofanma des Basses SAS

Tououse Cedex & 2 Aue du Libe Echange CS 85803, RSC 31505
Toulouse Cedex 5, 2 Flue du Libe Echange CS 95893, PSC 21508
Toulouse Cadex &, 2 Flus du Libe Echangs CS 65803, PSC 39508
Teulouze Codax 5,2 Fls du Libe Echangs CS 95893, RSC 31508
Toulouze Codax &, 2 Fue du Libe Echange CS 55803, RSC 11506

Toulouse Codex 5. 2 Auwe du Libe Echange CS 05833, RSC 21508
Hamborg, Am Sanchoriai 74, FSC 20457
i raCEZESCOF soral 2V.

ST

ohvod 'm;od.lur- Cez HB
dales pevrenoanou nz Bedon Group BV) 1. 1. 2000

k2.5 2020

Bromen, Sephanitoesbliwerk 3, PSC 282107
Bromen, Sepranitorsbeiwerk 3, FSC 28217
Bremen, Sephanitorsbalinerk 3, PSC 28217

W,
Nemesio m&m&apsczsm

B paorapcacmmoty CEZ, a2 Il ==nikalprodana ocketnos

(] St Adresa
DOD0S347 Cesit repubBaa - Proha 1, Lepncka 525/15, Mala Strana, PSE 11810
50103521 Cozhat repubfics Praha 7, Déinicks 213/ 12, Holesarics. FSC 17000
£3078323 Ceska reoublia  Prafa 1, Vodithows 3¢ 60,701, PSC 111 21
28244532 Cezkt repuiofia Praba B, K ieties 1010/E, Ruzyme, PSC 351 00
24253006 Ceska republia Praha B, Jana Katpers 1033/1, Ruzyme, PSC 10 03
2574235 Cezka repuinBa  Prahe 6, Avisticks 1077/2. FSC 150 08
27145573 Cezka republia - Prafe 6. Jona Katpers 1058/ 1, Fuzyné, PSC 16008
2627031 Cesht repubBa Praha 1, Vodickom 34701, PSC 111 21
2617520 Ceskat republia Praha B, Thamova 181/20. PSC 185 00
korolemontarie IMOE 2z .
S 4 HOLDING KLADND a.s % foridec?® 2514400 Cesks repeblia Kladhe, Cyrilx Bowdy 1244, Krotohiavy, PSC 72 0n
W% S0ITOM Ceskt ropcilia Praha B Thamows 181,20, Kariin, PSC 185 00

03207753 Coska repuba  Prafe 2. Anglicka 140/ 20, Vinchrady, PSC 2000
£3080248 CesharepubBa  Praha 4, B bovetra 1840755, Nusie. PSE 14000
£323468 Cesharepublia Krokupy nad Vitwow, Velruska 748, PSC2ram
152122783 Nempcia iehburg an der Donauw. MEFRO - Weg © FSC 85088
60196636 Cesha repubia Praha 1, Jengmismzka 06474, FSC 11000
4B3EH001 Cozka ropublica  Praha 8, Thamove 181/20, Karlin, RSC 185 00
DS37AZIT Coska repubBa  Kaning, Stonavzka 2179, Dok, PSC 73508
ATGTEQ10 Ceska repiblica Ostrava, Lik N0 10, Raderice. ASC 71800
42201740 Cesha repubis Toplioe, Libutine 2154, PSC 415 03
25401728 Cesha ropublica Fariowy Viary, |, P. Pardow 2001/ 11, PSC 380 11
DOOTDGED Cosha recubiia  Prahn, Beranovych 130, Lesnary, PSC 13005
01438875 Ceska repubBa  Praha 0. Berznowych 130, Letnary 7SC 103 00
2oatzat Ceska repubia  Praha 8, Berznowich 130 Latrany PSC 109 00
02521820 Coshat repuisBiar - Praha B, Bermnowych 130, Letrarye PSE 109 00
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Inven Capital - Subfund B

Financial Statements as at 31 December 2020



Company: Inven Capital, investi¢ni fond, a.s. Podfond B
Registered office: Pod kiizkem 1773/2, Prague 4 - Branik, CZ
Alternative ID No. (NIC): 751 60 692

Scope of business: autonomous investment fund

BALANCE SHEET
as at 31 December 2020

(in CZK thousands) Note 2020 2020 2020 2019

Gross Adjustment Net Net
ASSETS

Cash in hand and balances with central banks 0 0 0 0
2 State zero-coupon bonds and other securities eligible 0 g 0 0
for refinancing with the central bank 0 0 0 0
ofwhica) issued by government institutions 0 0 0 0
b) other 0 0 0 0
3 Due frombanks and cooperative savings associations 6 12218 7 0 12218 508
of whic a) repayable on demand 12218 0 12218 508
b) other receivables 0 0 0 0
4 Receivables from non-banking entities 0 0 0 0
of whic a) repayable on demand 0 0 0 0
b) other receivables 0 0 0 0
5 Debt securities 0 0 0 0
ofwhica) issued by government institutions 0 0 0 0
b) issued by other entities 0 0 0 0
6 Shares, unit certificates and other participations 4 667 100 0 667 100 309 682
7 Ownership interests constituting a significant influence 0 0 0 0
of which: in banks 0 0 0 0
8 Ownership interests constituting a dominant influence 0 0 0 0
of which: in banks 0 0 0 0
9 Intangible fixed assets 0 0 0 0
a) goodwill 0 0 0 0
10  Tangible fixed assets 0 0 0 0
of whic a) land and buildings for operating activities 0 0 0 0
b) other operating assets 0 0 0 0
11 Otherassets 7 38371 0 38371 0
12 Receivables from subscribed share capital 0 0 0 0
13 Deferred expenses and accrued income 8 6206 0 6206 5685
Total assets 723 895 0 723 895 315875




Comgeny: Inven Cepitzl, investiéad £nd. 25 Dodiomd B
Resistersd ofice: Pod 134em 17732, Prezne 4 - Breaits ©F
Altenztive ID No. (NIC): 751 50 822

3cops ofbusinsss: sutoncmons investoent find

BALANCE SHEET
as at 31 December 2020

{in CZK thonzznds)

Nots

LIABILITIES ANDEQUITY

1 D= to benks z20d cooparztive s2vin; 0 0
ofwhi 2} repeyeble cn demend 0 0
D) other geyebles 0 o
2 Lizbilitiss to noa-bankinz 0 4]
of whi g) rzpeveble ca demend 0 0
T} other pevebles 0 L
3 Pzyzblas Tom debt sacoritizs 0 0
of whi ) issuad d=bt secunitiss 0 ]
©) other peveblas fom debt secunitizs 0 0
4 Otherlizbilitiss 10 §58091
5 De2rad incoms 20d 2oomed sxpensss 0 o
§ Brovizicns 0 0
ofwhi ) for penzicas znd similar lizbilitizs 0 o
o) for t=mes 0 o
C) other 0 ¢
7 Subordinzt=d lizbilitizs 0 )
g 3hzrs czpitzl 2 0 )
ofwhi g shers c=pitzl peid up 0 0
g Share peeminm 0 O
10  Reserve finds znd other finds orszted Fom geodit
ofwhi 2) stztutocy 4] 0
b)) other reserve finds 0 0
C) other finds Fom prodt 0 2
11 Revzluztion Snd 0 ]
11 Cepitzl Sinds 583183 373373
13 Geinzorloss 2 25118 -15103
ofwhi 2 25118 -13103
nedzins derivatives 0 o
trznzlzticn o owrnsrzhip interssts 0 o
14  Ratzinsd s=rnins:s orzcouamizted losss: 2 423581 -17330
15  DProdt. {loss) e the period 2 -17526 15432
Totz! equity 557 204 315488
Total equity and linbilities 723 885 315875

OFF-BALANCE-SHEET ITEMS (=
OFbalzncs shest zszats:
Azzets providad D menzzement
Siznzturs ofthe stetutory body:

Inz Petr Mikoves
Board of Difectoes Chzir

/A/_

t 31 Diecember): 2020 2018

Ing. Ivo NEémejc

rd of Directors Vice-chair



Comgeny: Inven Capitzl, investitnd Snd, 2.5. Poddad B
Registered office: Pod i8kem 17732, Prezoe 4 - Brendk, CZ
Altemative ID No. (NIC): 751 80 622

Scop= of business: sutonomous investment find

INCOMLIE STATEMENT
for 2020

(in CZK thovusands) Notz 2020 201

©
o

1 Interest incoms and similar incoms 14 1
of whic Int=rest on d2bt sacuritiss

t

D D D
@ O (=]

[=)

2 Intarzzt expenss and similar swpenss
of whic interest sxpenss Fom debt sacoritiss
3 Incoms Som shares and ownership interests 1] 0
of whit &) incoms Fom ownership interszts constitotins & siznificant infuence 0 0
D) incoms Fom ownership interssts constitoting a dominant induence 0 0
) other incoms Som shares 2nd ownerchip interests 1]

oo

Fe2 znd commission incoms

LRI £
1=
L]

|

3

N
da
3 e

Fz2 2nd commission snpenss 12 270
6 Drofit or 1oss on dnencisl operations 14 8230 30
7 Other operating incoms 0 0
g Other oparetins enpensas 0 (1]
e Administeative sxpenzes i3 0 0
of whic 2) st=Tcosts 0 0
of which: z=) wazes and salarss 0 0
=b) socizl saoprity 2nd heslth insnence 0 0
o) other administrative expenze: 0 0
10 Feslezss of provisions and allowances Dr tenzidle znd 0 0
intanzivle dxad zz22tz 0 0
11  Depreciztion’zmorization, cherzs ©r 2nd vs2 of provizions and 0 0
zllowences o tenzidls 2nd intensibls dnad assats 0 0
12 Eeslezse of allowencs: and provizions S seceivables and soerzatess, rerovanies 0 (4]
of raceivables previously written of 0 /]
13 WritzoXE, charzs B end e of sllowences and provisions o 0 ]
r=ceivebles and susentsss (1] [+
14 Relezss of sllowences azsinst ownaship interests constitoting 0 0
dominzant or siznifcant inflpence 0 0
15 Loss on the tensSr of ownership intsests constitoting dominant or 0 0
significent influence, charzs Sr end poz of sllowences azainst ownarehip intarests constituting domina 0 0
1§  Reslesse of other provisions 0 0
17 Charze Sr and vse of other provizions 0 4]
18 Sher in profti(losszs) of ownerchip interests constitsting dominant or siznifcant induence 0 0
0 ]
18 Prgfiv'losci for the period from ovdinary activiries before taves -17 526 25452
25  Income t=x 11 0 ]
24  Profit/{losz) for the period after taxation -17 526 =25 482

Siznature of the statutory body:

Inz. Petr Mikovas Ing. Ivc Némsejc
Board of Directors Chair Board irectors \ice-chair

//




Coerpeny: Inven Cepitel, investital ond, 2 = Dodind B
Fegistersd ofice: Pod ke 1773/2, Pregue 4 - Breait CZ

Bus Fez No.: 02059333

3cops ofbosiness

CASHFLOW STATEMENT
for 2020

: SDtonomons invastment find

Raerancs Taxt Accounating pariod
2020 2018
P Cash and cach equivalents at the bezinnine of the vear v 508 1658
Cash flows from operatinz activities
Z Net profit on cedinany activitizs befors tzx -17526 25452
Al Adjustments Hraon-czsh movements 4 2821 0
All  Amortiztion offixed =ss2ts 2nd write-oF of recaivables
Al2 in zllowances end grovisions
Al3 Revzlustion ofzssats
Al4 Geinlosson disposzs] offixed =
AlS5 Iatersst expenss znd intersst incoms -1255
AlS  Otheraon-czsh movemsnts -138¢
A* Net cash from operating activities before taxation changes in worling ©
capital and extraordinary items -20147 =25 452
A2 sh components ef working czpitel §5184 578
AL 253213, peepevments end acomed incoms -520 -14%
A22 in other izbilitizs, acomels z2nd d=Sored incoms L2 85704 -238
Ads in inventory
A*  Netcash from operatine activitie: before taxation and extraordinary = 45037 26428
AsS Intarzst pzid
As Intarsst recived
As Tz pzid
Af Gzins znd loss2: on extreordinany items
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Company: Inven Capital investiéni fond 2 s. Podfond A
Registered office: Pod IiiFkem 17732, Prague 4 - Branik, CZ
Altemative ID No. (NIC): 751 60 692

Scope of business: autonomous investment fund

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Other capital Gains or losszs Profit (loss) Profit (loss) for - +
funds from revalvation  brovsht forward the vaar Fotal egeity

Balancs as at 1 Janvary 2019 284 789 -3528 -17 530 263 731
Issua/repurchass of invastment sharss 88 784
Ravaluvation of invastments -11 575 -11575
Distribution of profit (loss) brovzht forward -17 530 17 330
Profit (loss) for the year 25452 25452
Bazlancs 2s at 31 Dacamber 2015 373573 -15103 -17 330 =25 452 315488
Issua/repurchass of invastment shares 319622 319622
Ravaluztion of invastmants 40218 40218
Distribution of profit (loss) brouzht forward -25 4352 25452
Profit (loss) for the yaar -17 526
Balancs as at 31 Dacamber 2020 693 195 2531 42881 -17 326
Signature of the statutory body:
Ing. Petr Mikovec Ing. Ivo Némejc
Board of Directors Chair Bogrd of Directors Vice-chair
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1. DECSRIPTION OF THE SUB-FUND
Inven Capital — Subfund B (hereinafter “Subfund B”) is a sub-fund of Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., (hereinafter the “Company” or the “Fund”), formerly Inven Capital,
investicni fond, a.s., and prior to that CEZ Nova energetika, a.s., is a joint-stock company established
on 1 September 2013 with the registered office located at Pod kiizkem 1773/2, Prague 4, the Czech
Republic, Company ID No. 02059533.

The Czech National Bank’s (CNB) decision to grant alicense to conduct the activities of an
autonomous investment fund came into legal force on 31 August 2016 and the company changed its
business name to Inven Capital, investi¢ni fond, a.s. with effect from 1 September 2016. With effect
from 1 February 2018, the Fund as a joint-stock company was transformed into a variable-capital
joint-stock company (SICAV) within the meaning of Section 367 of the Act; alongside the change of
legal form, the Company changed its name to Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s. The Fund is an autonomous
investment fond of qualified investors in the form of a joint-stock company with variable registered
capital.

The sole shareholder of Subfund B is the European Investment Bank (EIB), with registered office
located at 98-100 boulevard Konrad Adenauer, L-2950 Luxembourg.

Members of the Fund’s statutory and supervisory bodies as at 31 December 2020:

Board of Directors
Chairman Petr Mikovec

Vice-Chairman Ivo Némejc

Member: Viktor Miskovsky

Supervisory Board

Chairman Tomas Pleskac
Vice-Chairman Martin Novak

Member: Vojtéch Kopp

The Fund has no foreign branch.

Inven Capital — Subfund B was created on 1 February 2018 by the decision of the Fund’s Board
of Directors and was registered in the register maintained by the CNB on 7 February 2018.
In accordance with Section 165(1) of the Act, the Sub-fund is, from an accounting and property
perspective, a part separated from the assets and liabilities of the Fund.

The Sub-fund’s investment shares are held by the EIB.

Subfund B has its own investment strategy and its own Statute. The investment strategy is always
set out in the Statute. The version of the Sub-fund’s Statute valid as at 31 December 2020 is dated
16 December 2020.

The Sub-fund’s investment strategy focuses on investments in growth-stage cleantech startups from
the EU, with scalable business models proven by sales and a strong growth potential. The Sub-fund
is interested in sectors such as energy efficiency, distributed power generation, flexibility and energy
storage, energy data services, clean transport, smart city, and the like.



2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying financial statements were prepared in accordance with Decree No. 501/2002
Coll., which implements certain provisions of Act No. 563/1991 Coll., on Accounting, as amended,
for accounting entities that are banks and other financial institutions, of 6 November 2002, as
amended, stipulating the structure and content of the financial statements and the scope of
disclosures for banks and certain financial institutions, and with the Czech accounting standards for
financial institutions as applicable for 2020 and 2019.

These financial statements have been prepared for the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020. The previous accounting period lasted from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Explanation Added for Translation into English

These financial statements are presented on the basis of accounting principles and standards
generally accepted in the Czech Republic. Certain accounting practices applied by the Company that
conform with generally accepted accounting principles and standards in the Czech Republic may not
conform with generally accepted accounting principles in other countries.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies applied by Subfund B in preparing the 2020 and 2019 financial statements
were as follows:

a) Transaction Recognition Date

Depending on the type of transaction, a transaction is recognized on the day on which a cash
payment is made or collected, foreign currency or securities are purchased or sold, a payment or
collection from the client’s account is made, funds (foreign currency) are credited according to the
bank’s notification, a securities transaction is settled, a guarantee or loan commitment is issued or
accepted or values are accepted to custody.

Accounting transactions that involve the purchase and sale of financial assets with normal delivery
date (spot transactions) and fixed-term transactions (forwards, futures and swaps) and options are
recorded in off-balance sheet accounts between the contract date and the settlement date.

A financial asset or a part thereof is derecognized from the balance sheet if Subfund B loses control
over the contractual rights to the financial asset or part thereof. Subfund B will lose control if the
rights to the benefits defined in the contract are exercised or waived or if they expire.

b) Foreign Currency

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in local currency translated at
the exchange rate published by the Czech National Bank (‘CNB”) as at the transaction date.
Financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, together with forex spot
transactions prior to maturity are translated to local currency at the rate published by the CNB as at
the financial statements date. Any gain or loss resulting from the translation of assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies is recognized in the ‘Profit or loss on financial operations’ caption
of the income statement with the exception of items revalued to fair value through equity.

c) Debt securities

Debt securities include fixed-income securities including accrued accessories of the debt, i.e. fixed
interest rate securities and variable interest rate securities, if the variability of the interest rate is
determined in advance in relation to market-based rates as at particular dates or periods. Debt
securities also include debt securities issued by government authorities and other debt securities
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measured at fair value, debt securities provided as collateral in repurchase agreements, debt
securities provided as borrowings and the allowance against debt securities measured at amortized
cost.

d) Shares, unit certificates and other interests

Shares, share certificates and other interests include in particular available-for-sale securities and
interests. Ownership interests and securities are measured at cost that includes the purchase price
and direct costs related to the acquisition, e.g. stock exchange and brokers’ fees and commissions.
As at 31 December, the individual components are revalued as follows:

Available-for-sale securities (except for bonds with fixed interest rate) and interests represent
minority interests measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in equity as gains or
losses from the revaluation of assets and liabilities. Any permanent value impairment is recognized
in the relevant income statement caption.

The fair value is the market value as published by local or foreign stock exchange or the value
determined by a qualified estimate or expert opinion, if the market value is unavailable.

e) Amounts due from banks

Receivables from banks, current accounts held with banks and short-term financial deposits with
maturity not exceeding 3 months. Receivables from banks denominated in foreign currencies are
translated to Czech crowns at the exchange rate prevailing as at the balance sheet date.

f) Derivatives
Derivatives are initially measured at cost.

Derivatives are recorded in other short-/long-term receivables or payables, as appropriate, in the
accompanying balance sheet.

Derivatives are classified as derivatives held for trading or hedging derivatives. A derivative qualifies
as a hedging derivative only if all of the following conditions are met:

a) The hedge is consistent with the Company’s risk management strategy;

b) At the inception of the hedge, there is formal documentation of the hedging relationship
in accounting records; the documentation includes identification of hedged items and
hedging instruments, precise specification of the risk being hedged, and approach to
assessing and demonstrating hedge effectiveness; and

c) The hedge is effective; the hedge is effective if, at inception and during the period for which
the hedge is designated, changes in the fair value or cash flows of hedging instruments
attributable to the hedged risk, or overall changes in the fair value or cash flows of hedging
instruments, are within a range of 80—-125 percent of changes in the fair value or cash flows
of hedged items attributable to the hedged risk. The Company assess hedge effectiveness
at the inception of the hedge and subsequently at least at each balance sheet date when
annual, extraordinary, interim or any other financial statements are prepared.

Derivatives that do not meet all of the above conditions are classified as derivatives held for trading.
Gains and losses on derivatives held for trading are recorded in profit or loss at least at each balance
sheet date.

Derivatives are revalued to fair value as at the balance sheet date. The fair value of the derivative is
determined on the basis of an expert opinion.

With hedging derivatives for which cash flow hedge accounting is applied, gains or losses attributable
to the hedged risk are recognized in equity. Gains or losses from the valuation of hedging instruments
are reclassified into profit or loss during the same periods in which expenses and income related to
hedged items affect profit or loss. If a hedge of aforecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a non-financial asset, a non-financial liability or a firm commitment for which fair
value hedge accounting is applied, the associated gains and losses may be recognized together with
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the non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

With hedging derivatives for which hedge accounting for a net investment in foreign subsidiaries or
associates is applied, gains or losses attributable to the hedged currency risk are recognized in
equity. These gains and losses are reclassified into profit or loss in the same periods during which
expenses and income on disposal of the hedged net investment in foreign subsidiaries or associates
affect profit or loss.

Sometimes, a derivative may be a component of a hybrid (combined) financial instrument that
includes both a host contract and the derivative (embedded derivative) which affects cash flows or
otherwise modifies the features of the host contract. An embedded derivative is separated from the
host contract and is accounted for as a separate derivative if all of the following conditions are met:
a) The economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related
to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract;
b) A separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and
c) The hybrid (combined) instrument is not measured in fair value or is measured at fair value
but changes in fair value are retained in the statement of financial position.

The economic characteristics and risks of an embedded derivative are not closely related to
the economic characteristics and risks of a host contract and, accordingly, an embedded derivative
is separated from a host contract in the following examples:

a) A put option embedded in an equity instrument;

b) A call option embedded in an equity instrument;

c) A currency option embedded in an interest rate instrument;

d) An option to extend the remaining term to maturity of an interest rate host instrument unless
there is a concurrent adjustment to the approximate current market rate of interest at the
time of the extension;

e) A derivative converting an interest rate host instrument into an instrument with features of
an equity instrument or commodity;

f) A derivative embedded in an interest rate host instrument which converts the host
instrument into an equity instrument;

g) Acall or put option on an interest rate instrument issued with a significant discount or
premium unless the option’s exercise price is approximately equal to the interest rate
instrument’s cost increased or decreased by interest income or expense;

h) A credit derivative embedded in a host contract.

The fair value of an embedded derivate separated from a host contract is recorded in other
receivables or liabilities, as appropriate.

The economic characteristics and risks of an embedded derivative are closely related to
the economic characteristics and risks of a host contract and, accordingly, an embedded derivative
is not separated from a host contract in the following examples:
a) An interest rate swap embedded in an interest rate host contract;
b) An interest rate option embedded in an interest rate host contract if the option was out of
the money at inception;
c) A currency swap or forward embedded in an interest rate host contract;
d) A prepayment option embedded in a host contract unless the option’s exercise price will
normally generate significant gains or losses.

g) Convertible loans

Loans granted with the right to exchange for ownership interests in the Company are accounted for
as receivables and remeasured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in equity as gains
or losses from the revaluation of assets and liabilities. Any permanent value impairment is recognized
in the relevant income statement caption.

The fair value is the market value as published by local or foreign stock exchange or the value
determined by a qualified estimate or expert opinion, if the market value is unavailable.
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Embedded derivatives are separated from the fair value of convertible loans: these represent the
value of the estimated discount applied to the share price at conversion.

Both convertible loans and related derivatives are recognized in the balance sheet in other assets.
h) Other liabilities

Other liabilities are recognized at nominal values.
i) Other assets

Other assets are recognized at nominal values.
j) Provisions

Provisions represent probable performance of uncertain timing and amount. Provisions are
recognized if the following criteria are met:

- there is a present obligation (legal or substantial) to perform, which results from past events,

- the performance is probable and will require an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits,

- areasonably reliable estimate can be made of the performance.

Additions to provisions are recognized in the relevant income statement caption, their use is
recognized together with the costs or losses for which the provisions were created in the relevant
income statement caption. The release of provisions that are no longer needed is recognized in
Creation and release of other provisions. Provisions are created in the currency in which the related
performance is expected to be made.

k) Equity

For each sub-fund, the Fund issues investment shares that represent equal shares in the fund capital
of the given sub-fund. The investment shares issued for a sub-fund have the following rights
attached: the right to a share in profit ensuing only from the performance of the given sub-fund and
the right to a share of the liquidation surplus ensuing only upon the dissolution of the sub-fund with
liquidation. The shares are issued as no-par value (NPV) shares, i.e. shares with no nominal value
listed on the share.

The currency of the investment shares of Subfund B is in EUR. The Company’s shares have been
issued as securities and have not been admitted to trading on a regulated market, i.e. they are not
listed on any regulated (or other European) market or admitted to trading in any multilateral trading
facility.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Subfund B does not create a reserve fund.
I) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The Company management
prepared these estimates and predictions based on all available relevant information. These
estimates and assumptions are based on information available as at the date of the financial
statements and may differ from actual results.

m) Recognition of Revenues and Expenses
Revenues and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis, that is, they are recognized in the
periods in which the actual flow of the related goods or services occurs, regardless of when the

related monetary flow arises.
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Operating expenses and other fees related to the management and administration of the Sub-fund
are recognized in the ‘Fee and Commission Expense’ caption in the period in which they were
incurred.

Interest income on debt securities is recognized in the ‘Interest Income and Interest Expense’
caption.

n) Income tax

The corporate income tax expense is calculated based on the statutory tax rate and book income
before taxes, increased or decreased by the appropriate permanent and temporary differences (e.g.
non-deductible provisions and allowances, entertainment expenses, differences between book and
tax depreciation, etc.). In addition, the following items are taken into consideration: tax base
decreasing items (donations), tax deductible items (tax loss, research and development costs) and
income tax reliefs.

The deferred tax position reflects the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for corporate
income tax purposes, taking into consideration the period of realization.

o) Subsequent events
The impact of events that occurred between the balance sheet date and the date of the financial
statements preparation is recognized in the financial statements provided these events provide
additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the balance sheet.
If material events reflecting the facts occurring after the balance sheet date happened between
the balance sheet date and the date of the financial statements preparation the consequences of
these events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements but not recognized in the financial
statements.

p) Changes in accounting policies
From the following accounting period beginning on 1 January 2021, based on an amendment to
Decree No. 501/2020 Coll. implementing certain provisions of Act No. 563/1991 Coll., on Accounting,
as amended, for entities that are banks and other financial institutions, the Fund will apply IFRS 9 —
Financial Instruments, IFRS 7 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures and IAS 32 — Financial
instruments: Presentation.
IFRS 9 covers the following:
» Classification and measurement of financial instruments;
 Impairment testing;
» Hedge accounting.

Currently, the Fund is mainly concerned with the issue of classification and measurement of financial
instruments — i.e. financial assets and issued shares.

Financial assets

IFRS 9 classifies financial assets into three basic categories. On initial recognition of a financial
asset, an entity designates one of the following categories, based on the business model of holding
the asset, as well as the characteristics of the future cash flows from the asset. IFRS 9 identifies the
following categories of financial assets:

« financial assets measured at amortised cost (AC);
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- financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); and
- financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

The Fund has decided to apply the “Trading” or “FV option” business model to all existing financial
assets, and subsequently to consider this model as the only default method for future investments,
for the following reasons:

a) the said business model fits best the Fund’s investment strategy;

b) the Fund invests in ownership interests in companies with the primary objective to sell,
rather than gain strategic control of these investments after appreciation; and

¢) reporting changes in value through profit or loss will best reflect the financial performance
of the Fund.

The Fund will measure all financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Accordingly, the
following shall apply:

« changes in fair value are recognized in profit or loss,

* exchange rate differences are recognized in profit or loss (and may be recognized as part of the
revaluation of assets); and

* estimated credit losses (allowances) are neither calculated nor recorded.
Equity instruments

The Sub-fund has one shareholder and one type of redeemable shares issued; in accordance with
IAS 32 16A — 16D there are no subordinate, preference, or other types of shares, all shares carry
the same rights and therefore the Fund has elected to take advantage of the exemption to continue
to record equity as an equity instrument.

In the case of application of the above methods, the increase in the value of shares in the amount of
CZK 35,966 thousand for 2020 would be recognized in profit or loss and not in equity.

The Fund has decided that the changes will not be applied retrospectively, but as part of opening
balance adjustments. As at 1 January 2021, the equity item of Gains or losses from revaluation
totaling CZK 25,116 thousand will be reclassified to Profit (loss) brought forward. The Profit (loss)
brought forward will be CZK (35,391) thousand as at 1 January 2021, including the profit or loss for
the year 2020.

4. SHARES, UNIT CERTIFICATES AND OTHER INTERESTS

The item Shares, unit certificates and other interests includes Ownership interests in portfolio
companies.

Summary of changes in ownership interests:

(inCzK Balance as at - . Balance as at . . Balance as at
thousands) 1/ 1/ 2019 Additions  Revaluation 31/ 12/ 2019 Additions Revaluation 31/ 12/ 2020
Ctnership 258,846 62,411 (11,575) 309,682 321,452 35,966 667,100
interests
Total 258,846 62,411 (11,575) 309,682 321,452 35,966 667,100

Ownership interests in portfolio companies as at 31 December 2020 consist of investments in Tado
GmbH, Cloud & Heat Technologies GmbH, Cosmo Tech, NeuronSW SE, Zolar GmbH, Eliq AB,
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Forto GmbH and Topite.cz, with the fair value amounting to CZK 667,100 thousand as at
31 December 2020.

Ownership interests in portfolio companies as at 31 December 2019 consisted of investments in
Tado GmbH, Cloud & Heat Technologies GmbH, Cosmo Tech, NeuronSW SE and Zolar GmbH, with
the fair value amounting to CZK 309,682 thousand as at 31 December 2019.

None of the Sub-fund’s interests in any of the companies reaches 20%. The revaluation of
investments as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 was included directly in equity.

In 2020, three new investments were made, namely in Elig AB, Forto GmbH and Topite.cz, s.r.o.,
with additional investments in Tado GmbH and Zolar GmbH.

The revaluation of investments as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 was included directly in equity.

Significant valuation assumptions include, in particular, market information, expected cash flows,
WACC and other factors.

5. LOANS GRANTED AND EMBEDDED DERIVATIVES

Summary of changes in loans granted and embedded derivatives:

Balance as at Balance as at

(in CZK thousands) 31/ 12/ 2019 Additions Disposals Revaluation Interest 31/ 12/ 2020

Loans and borrowings — with

the right to exchange for _ 21997 _ 2193 1255 25 445
ownership interests ' ' ' '

Derivative - 11,559 - 1,367 - 12,926
Total - 33,556 - 3,560 1,255 38,371

The Sub-fund provided loans with the right to exchange for ownership interests to Cloud & Heat
Technologies GmbH and NeuronSW SE in the amount of CZK 25,445 thousand after excluding the
embedded derivatives. The loans with the right to exchange for ownership interests are included in
the Other assets balance sheet caption. In connection with these loans, embedded derivatives of
CZK 10,865 thousand were recorded; the amount consists of an embedded derivative for a loan to
NeuronSW SE in the amount of CZK 4,356 thousand and Cloud & Heat in the amount of CZK 6,509
thousand.

As at 31 December 2020, the derivatives total CZK 12,926 thousand and include the derivative value
to the equity bridge of Tado GmbH, which had been determined CZK 2,061 thousand based on an
expert opinion, and in this amount was excluded from the investment in this company. The
derivatives are included in the Other assets balance sheet caption.

Interest recorded in connection with the loans to Cloud & Heat Technologies GmbH and
NeuronSW SE amounted to CZK 1,255 thousand as at 31 December 2020.

Revaluation of derivatives was included in profit or loss.
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6. AMOUNTS DUE FROM BANKS

. Cash consists of:

(in CZK thousands) 31/12/ 2020 31/12/ 2019
Current account balances 12,218 508
Total 12,218 508

7. OTHER ASSETS

Other assets include:

(in CZK thousands) 2020 2019
Fair value of embedded derivatives 12,926 -
Convertible loans 25,445 -
Total 38,371 -

For more information on embedded derivatives and convertible loans, see Note 5 (Loans granted
and embedded derivatives).

8. PREPAID EXPENSES AND ACCRUED INCOME

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, Subfund B recorded prepaid expenses of CZK 6,206 thousand
and CZK 5,686 thousand, respectively that include operating costs and other fees billed in advance
based on the Sub-fund’s Statute and relating to the management and administration of the Sub-fund.

9. EQUITY
Balance as at: 31/ 12/ 2020 31/ 12/ 2019 31/ 12/ 2018
Fund capital of Subfund B (EUR): 25,063,962 12,415,935 10,251,950
Number of investment shares of the Sub-fund issued and outstanding at
the end of the accounting period (number of items): 81,782 16,567 12,201
Nur_nber of investr’pent shares of the Sub-fund issued in the accounting 15,175 4326 12,261
period (number of items):
Number of investment shares of the Sub-fund purchased in the accounting _ _ R
period (number of items):
Fund capital of Subfund B per 1 share (EUR): 789.1179 748.534 836.1430

Balance as at: 31 December 2020 (in CZK)

Fund capital: CZK 657,803,679 (converted at the rate of 26,245 CZK for 1 EUR as of 31 December
2020)

Fund capital per share: CZK 20,710

In 2020, there were five extraordinary determinations of the current value of the Sub-fund’s
investment share: as at 30 April 2020 (EUR 737.8115), as at 31 July 2020 (EUR 747.9742), as at
31 August 2020 (EUR 769.9668), as at 30 September 2020 (EUR 814.9509) and as at 30 November
2020 (EUR 887.2922).

In 2020, other capital funds increased by CZK 319,622 thousand to CZK 693,195 thousand (see the
above Statement of Changes in Equity) due to the issue of investment shares in connection with
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investments in new companies; in 2019, other capital funds increased by CZK 88,784 thousand due
to the issue of investment shares in connection with investments in new companies as well.

Gains or losses from revaluation in 2020 increased by CZK 40,219 thousand in connection with
revaluation to fair value as at 31 December 2020; in 2019, the item decreased by CZK 11,575
thousand in connection with the revaluation to fair value as well (see the Statement of Changes in

Equity).

10. OTHER LIABILITIES

(in CZK thousands) 2020 2019
Unbilled deliveries 232 -
Other 65,859 387
Total 66,091 387

Unbilled deliveries as at 31 December 2020 include unbilled liabilities to suppliers relating to 2020;
the ‘Other’ item mainly includes liabilities to shareholders totaling CZK 65,777 thousand as at
31 December 2020.

11. INCOME TAX

2020 2019
Profit (loss) before taxes (17,526) (25,452)
Other non-deductible expenses (particularly investments
carrying costs) 4,917 1,785
Tax base (12,609) (23,666)
Current income tax rate 5% 5%

Tax - -

Current tax expense - -

As at 31 December 2020 and 2009, the Company calculated a deferred tax asset in the amount of
CZK 3,392 thousand (of which CZK 2,127 thousand is deferred tax from tax losses and CZK 1,265
thousand is deferred tax from revaluation of investments) and CZK 2,341 thousand, respectively (of
which CZK 1,586 thousand is from tax losses and CZK 755 thousand from revaluation). Subfund B
did not record the deferred tax asset on the basis that its recovery is uncertain due to the uncertainty
as to the generation of sufficient future taxable income.

12. FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSE

Subfund B had no employees in the Accounting Period. The fee expenses reported below relate to
fees determined on the basis of the Sub-fund’s Statute.

Fee and commission expense (in CZK thousands) 2020 2019

Management 26,067 24,365
Administration 458 486
Audit 328 328
Depositary 168 303
Total 27,020 25,482
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13. ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

The Sub-fund records no administrative costs as at 31 December 2020 and 2019, respectively.

14. OTHER SIGNIFICANT INCOME AND EXPENSE ITEMS

As at 31 December 2020, the ‘Interest income and similar income’ caption includes, in particular,
interest income of CZK 1,255 thousand arising from convertible loans.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Sub-fund recorded profit from financial operations of

CZK 8,239 thousand and CZK 30 thousand, respectively generated, in particular, by exchange rate
gains and income from revaluation of embedded derivatives.

15. RELATED PARTY INFORMATION

The members of management, supervisory and administrative bodies of the Fund were granted no
advances, earnest money, loans, borrowings or guarantees in 2020 and they do not hold any
shares/interests of the Company. Other benefits consist of the use of company cars and phones
for private purposes.

16. RISK MANAGEMENT

Credit risk

The risk associated with possible failure by the Sub-fund’s counterparty to meet its obligations, i.e.
the risk that the issuer of an investment instrument held by Subfund B or a party to a contract (relating
to a particular investment) fails to meet its obligation, or that a debtor fails to repay, timely and fully,
the Sub-fund’s claim.

Subfund B may accept and provide loans or borrowings under the terms laid down in the Statute.
As at 31 December 2020, Subfund B has no loans.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that certain asset of the Sub-fund will not be converted to cash quickly enough
at a reasonable price and that, as a result, the Sub-fund will be unable to meet its financial obligations

as they fall due, including the risk that the assets held by the Sub-fund cannot be sold or offset
with limited costs and within a reasonable time.

As at 31 December 2020, Subfund B has cash at bank totaling EUR 466 thousand; it records no
current liabilities from supplier business transactions.

Market risk

The risk that the value of an asset invested in by the Sub-fund may rise or fall depending on changes
of economic conditions, interest rates, exchange rates and the asset’s perception by the market.
The limits stipulated by the current full version of the Statute and by the applicable legal regulations
apply to all components of the market risk. Any internal regulations may only stipulate limits that are
even stricter than those referred to above.

Market risk is the general risk associated with the philosophy of investment in an investment fund;
in accordance with the fund’s statute, the investor-shareholder has accepted this general risk before
making the investment. Market risk is thoroughly assessed by the Fund prior to the approval of any
transaction. In managing the assets, the Fund adheres to all regulations laid down in the Statute.
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Currency risk

With respect to the fact that the Sub-fund's investment shares are subscribed in Euro, the Sub-fund
is exposed to currency risk when making investments in currencies other than EUR. This may result
in fluctuations in the value of a security determined by the Administrator due to exchange rate
differences arising upon the valuation of the Sub-fund's assets.

The range of investments in different currencies is limited by the Statute; pursuant to the Statute,
the Sub-fund’s investments shall be made in EUR and other currencies of the EU Member States.
Sub-fund’s existing investments have so far only been made in EUR. As the current value of the
investment shares issued by Subfund B is determined in EUR as well, the Sub-fund is not currently
exposed to currency risk.

Risk connected with investments in ownership interests in business companies

According to the investment strategy set out inthe Statute, Subfund B may acquire shares,
ownership interests, equity certificates, or any other legally permissible forms of participation
in corporations with share capital or similar types of companies in foreign jurisdictions (whether
regulated or unregulated) that meet the conditions set out in the Statute. Target companies may as
well be temporary special purpose vehicles established to acquire the above assets, and/or obtain
bank or non-bank financing and risk diversification, including the possibility for Subfund B to carry
out a transformation process in which Subfund B and/or the Target Company will be participating
companies, in accordance with the relevant specific legislation. '

According to the Statute, the minimum amount of asingle investment from the Sub-fund’s own
resources is EUR 1,000,000 at the time of its acquisition; the maximum investment from the Sub-
fund’s own resources at the time of its acquisition is EUR 10,000,000 per Target Company in the
sum of all investment rounds. The Statute of Subfund B sets out other investment limits as well.

Business companies in which the Sub-fund has a stake may be exposed to business risks.

As aresult, the market price of ownership interests in a business company may decrease or
completely lose value (the company may go bankrupt), or the interest may become unsaleable. This
risk is managed by careful selection of the target companies; each company is subject to a thorough
examination prior to any transaction (Term sheet, Deal Alert, ABAC report, financial, legal and/or
technical due diligence reports). In addition, liquidation preference is agreed in direct investments;
liquidation preference means that Subfund B will receive a preferred return in case the company is
liguidated (sold). Investments in target companies are made as co-investments of both Subfund A /
Subfund B in the companies in the EU, and with strong partners. In addition, the investors have their
members in supervisory bodies with direct access to company information on a monthly basis or any
time upon request. Subfund B also regularly monitors the portfolio companies.

Inherent risk associated with Subfund B investment strategy

In view of the Sub-fund’s very specific investment strategy, there will always be a risk associated
with the very nature of the investment strategy aiming at investments in new industries and
progressive technologies through investments in Target Companies. Such risks include, but are not
limited to, e.g.:

a) the risk associated with the promoter of the investment being considered or with
the management team in the Target Company arising from e.g. possible lack of experience,
honesty, business instinct, or contacts, etc.;

b) the risk associated with the product resulting from e.g. insufficient commercialization of the
product, different requirements for prototype production and mass production, possible
reverse engineering of the new product, wrong estimate of the product’s benefits, product
price, etc.;

c¢) technological risks arising from e.g. the possible existence of a better or more efficient
technology now or in the future, unpredictability of the development time and direction, non-
connectivity to existing systems, lack of material resources, etc;

d) market risks related to the market environment, such as the market size, market potential,
competition, alternative products, unforeseen marketing costs, etc.;
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e) financial risks, such as the absence of adequate capital resources/market at the moment
of future divestment, inappropriate level or structure of external financing, currency risks,
disagreement between co-financing investors, etc.:

f) operational risks associated with e.g. lack of qualified personnel, etc.;

g) environmental risks;

h) the above-mentioned political, regional, legal, regulatory and tax risks pertaining to
individual investments.

Through diversification, which is part of the risk management strategy exercised by the Fund,
possible impact of these risks on total assets of the Sub-fund can be reduced to a certain extent, but
the probability, form and frequency of occurrence of risks cannot be affected.

Concentration risk

The risk of loss arising from a significant concentration of exposures, particularly to a single person
or a single group of related parties, or to a group of persons where the probability of their failure
depends on a common risk factor, i.e. the same economic sector or part thereof, geographical area,
financial market section, type of assets or the issuer of the investment instrument.

Subfund B has limited this risk through the limits applicable to individual securities and equal shares
in a group of related persons, see the limits in the Statute.

Operational risk

The risk of aloss of assets resulting from inadequate or erroneous internal processes, failures
of operating systems or human factor, or external events.

The Fund has divided operational risk to four categories according to the source of risk:

a) process risks (incorrect execution of a transaction, exceeded limits, bookkeeping errors);

b) risk of human error (internal fraud, manual processing errors, errors in entries to information
systems);

c) information system risks (HW, SW or telecommunications failure, unavailability of data,
security failure, missing valuation data);

d) external risks (external service provider default, including External suppliers, forces
of nature).

The operational risk assessment takes into account the functioning of the Fund's internal and
external control system, which is evaluated by the Fund and by the internal auditor, who is
responsible for assessing individual operational risk manifestations and is involved in identifying
potential new operational risk manifestations. Operational risk is eliminated by strict adherence to
the four eyes rule, including random checks, employee training regarding limits, internal guidelines
and legal regulations, strict adherence to the archiving rules by the information system administrator,
thereby minimizing losses due to information system failure (part of the contract with the IS supplier),
control mechanisms preventing the use of client funds for proprietary trading. Reconciliation and
control of the movements of funds and investment instruments and compliance with the limits are
carried out in accordance with the applicable Internal Policy, thereby ensuring timely detection and
correction of errors. Concerning external control, operational risk is also eliminated by the activities
of the Fund’s depositary. The scope of control by the depositary is governed by the Depositary
Agreement.

Settlement risk (Counterparty risk)

Settlement risk is the risk of a loss arising from a counterparty’s failure to meet its obligations before
the final settlement of the underlying transaction. Transactions with Subfund B’s assets may be
frustrated due to the counterparty’s inability to satisfy its liabilities and deliver the required asset or
make the required payment by the agreed deadline.

Settlement risk is assessed when a transaction is approved (ABAC report, Due diligence reports).
The risk that a counterparty may default in the settlement of transactions is mitigated by the use
of appropriate contractual instruments (e.g. escrow accounts).
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Outsourcing risk

Certain activities related to the management of the Fund are outsourced from a third party on the
basis of an outsourcing agreement pursuant to Clause 4 of the Fund’s Statute. The delegation of
certain tasks to another entity involves the risk that the Fund will not meet some of its obligations.
The Fund minimizes this risk by carefully selecting external service providers.

Accounting and tax services - WTS Alfery s.r.o. is a long-term provider of services to the CEZ Group.

Administrator - AMISTA investi¢ni spolenost, a.s. is an entity subject to CNB regulation.

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In the first months of 2021, the world was hit by another wave of COVID-19. To suppress the virus,
large-scale measures have been taken in a number of countries (e.g. restrictions on the movement
of people), causing significant economic damage. In most countries, vaccination of the population
has begun, which should allow a gradual relaxation of restrictions and a return to the original
functioning of the economy.

The Fund’s management has considered the impacts of COVID-19 on its activities and business to
date as well as the current situation of the Target Companies and concluded that they did not have
a significant effect on the Fund’s going concern assumption. All the above factors are regularly taken
into account in the valuation of individual Target Companies, which is confirmed by an external
appraiser. The Fund’s management has considered the impacts of COVID-19 on its activities and
business to date as well as the current situation of the Target Companies and concluded that they
did not have a significant effect on the Fund’s going concern assumption. Accordingly, the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 were prepared on the assumption that the
Company would be able to continue as a going concern.
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